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COMMUNITY ZONING APPEALS BOARD 14
SOUTH DADE GOVERNMENT CENTER - ROOM 203

10710 SW 211 STREET, MIAMI
October 1, 2014 @ 6:00 p.m.

Board Members
(Present)

Wilber Bell, Chairman
Curtis Lawrence, Vice Chairman

Gary Dufek
Diane Coats-Davis

Lubby Navarro
Nehemia Davis

County Attorney's Office

Abbie Schwaderer-Raurell
Assistant County Attorney

S t a f f

Carl Harrison, Evaluator
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I N D E X

CHAIRMAN BELL: 3-4, 6-7, 13-14, 18-20, 23-25,
28-29, 35-36, 42-44, 57, 61, 64, 69-76.

VICE CHAIR LAWRENCE: 3, 13-14. 57-61, 71-75.

COUNCILWOMAN COATS-DAVIS: 3, 35, 42-43, 57-59,
71, 74-75.

COUNCILMAN DAVIS: 3, 70-71, 75.

COUNCILMAN DUFEK: 3, 64-71, 75.

COUNCILWOMAN NAVARRO: 3, 43, 61-64, 71, 75.

S T A F F

MR. HARRISON: 3-6, 30, 43, 70-71, 74-75.

ON BEHALF OF THE APPLICANT

MR. KRISCHER: 7-18, 28, 43-57, 67-69, 71-75.

SUPPORTERS

MR. ALVAREZ: 18-19.

PROTESTERS

MR. DE JESUS: 20-23.
MR. BUCKHALT: 23-25.
MR. LAURIE: 25-27.
MR. WALTON: 27-28.
MR. LECHOT: 28-29.
MR. WHITNEY: 29.
MS. LECHOT: 29-35.
MS. OSBORNE: 35-37.
MS. HINDIN: 37-42.
MR. JONCKHEERE: 43-44.
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CHAIRMAN BELL: Call to order

Community Council 14, zoning hearing.

Please stand for the Pledge.

(Pledge of Allegiance).

CHAIRMAN BELL: Roll call.

MR. HARRISON: Councilwoman

Coats-Davis?

COUNCILWOMAN COATS-DAVIS: Present.

MR. HARRISON: Councilman Davis?

COUNCILMAN DAVIS: Here.

MR. HARRISON: Councilman Dufek?

COUNCILMAN DUFEK: Here.

MR. HARRISON: Vice Chair Lawrence?

VICE CHAIRMAN LAWRENCE: Here.

MR. HARRISON: Councilwoman Navarro?

COUNCILWOMAN NAVARRO: Present.

MR. HARRISON: Please note Councilman

Spencer is absent.

Chairman Bell?

CHAIRMAN BELL: Here.

MR. HARRISON: We have quorum.

CHAIRMAN BELL: Those who wish to

speak this afternoon, please stand and be

sworn in by the court reporter. Anybody

speaking this afternoon, please stand and
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be sworn in.

(Thereupon, all interested

individuals seeking to present testimony

in these proceedings were duly sworn to

tell the truth, the whole truth and

nothing but the truth, after which the

following transpired:)

CHAIRMAN BELL: Are there any

requests for withdrawals or deferrals?

Seeing none --

MR. HARRISON: "In accordance with

the Code of Miami-Dade County, all items

to be heard this evening have been legally

advertised in the newspaper, notices have

been mailed and the properties have been

posted. Additional copies of the agenda

are available here at the meeting. Items

will be called up to be heard by agenda

number and name of applicant.

"The record of the hearing on each

application will include the records of

the Department of Regulatory and Economic

Resources.

"All these items are physically

present this evening, available to all
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interested parties and available to the

Members of the Board, who examine items

from the record during the hearing.

Parties have the right of

cross-examination.

"This statement, along with the fact

that all witnesses have been sworn, shall

be included in any transcript of all or in

part of these proceedings.

"In addition, the following

departments have representatives present

here at the meeting to address any

questions: The zoning evaluation and

platting and traffic review sections of

the Department of Regulatory and Economic

Resources and the County Attorney's

Office.

"All exhibits used in presentation

before the Board become part of the public

record and will not be returned unless an

identical letter-size copy is submitted

for the file.

"Any person making impertinent or

slanderous remarks or who becomes

boisterous while addressing the Community
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Appeals Board shall be barred from further

audience before the Community Appeals

Board by the presiding officer unless

permission to continue or again address

the Board be granted by the majority vote

of the Board Members present.

"The number of filed protests and

waivers in each application will be read

into the record at the time of hearing as

each application is read. Those items not

heard prior to the ending time for this

meeting will be deferred to the next

available zoning hearing meeting date for

this Board."

First item on the agenda, Item A,

14-7-CZ14-1, Helen Michael and Preferred

Enterprises, Incorporated, application

number 14-003. There are 197 protests and

0 waivers.

CHAIRMAN BELL: When I call you,

please step up to the podium, state your

name and address clearly for the record.

I will then proceed to call you who

are in support of the application. I will

then call on the objectors.
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Those of you would wish to speak will

state your name and address. For those of

you speaking, I would ask, you know, that

you make your presentation short and

nonrepetitive. Thank you.

MR. KRISCHER: Thank you.

Good evening, Mr. Chairman, Members

of the Board. For the record, my name is

Alan Krischer with the law firm of Holland

& Knight, address of 701 Brickell Avenue,

appearing on behalf of the applicants

tonight in their request for a district

boundary change to rezone approximately

20 acres from AU to EU-M.

As your staff report indicates, we

are consistent with the comprehensive plan

and your staff is recommending approval

with no objections and no conditions. And

we, of course, agree with their analysis.

Now, in many circumstances, that

would be the end of my presentation, but

as you can see, the room is filled and I

imagine that almost everyone behind me is

going to be an objection to this

application.
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You had deferred this matter once

before so that we would have the

opportunity to meet with our neighbors,

and talk about the issues and see if there

was a way to resolve this before bringing

it back to you. And unfortunately we were

not able to work that out, the differences

between what the neighbors are looking --

excuse me, what the neighbors are looking

for and the applicant's proposal was too

fundamental.

So because we have so many objectors

here tonight, I will be making a slightly

longer presentation, but since every one

of your reviewing agencies has recommended

approval and none of them have raised any

objections, I'm going to be keeping my

initial comments somewhat brief. And I

expect that I'll be doing most of my

talking in response to any points that are

brought up by our objectors, so I'd like

to reserve that time for rebuttal.

But the basic point remains the same:

This application has been found to be

consistent with your comprehensive plan.
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It is consistent with your zoning code.

It is consistent with principles of good

planning and it has been thoroughly

reviewed by your professional staff, which

is recommending approval. And that does

not change despite the fact that there are

a number of objectors.

So to orient the Board, this aerial

photograph shows the property and the

surrounding area. The subject property

consists of about 20 acres. It's outlined

in light blue. It's at the intersection

of Southwest 162 Avenue and 278 Street.

It's about a block north of 280 Street.

It's surrounded to the west and to

the south by existing residential

development; to the north and to the east

by existing agricultural development.

To orient you further, off this

picture, this is where Dixie Highway runs,

down this way.

On the other board is a detail from

the Future Land Use Map of your

Comprehensive Development Master Plan.

And the subject property there is outlined
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in yellow. The thick black line is 280

Street. The very thick dotted line across

the top of that picture is the urban

development boundary. This property is

located well inside the Urban Development

Boundary. And like all property inside

the UDB, it is designated for an urban

use. None of the property inside the UDB

is designated to be agricultural use in

the long term.

Like all of the surrounding property

is designated for estate density

residential. That's that light green that

you see there. The ag is the dark green

on the other side of the urban boundary.

The estate density residential

category calls for residential development

of up to 2.5 units per acre.

As I mentioned, the property is

currently zoned AU. The applicants have

requested a district boundary change from

the ag designation to EU-M. That is

consistent with the comprehensive plan

designation.

Now, when originally filed, the



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

MIAMI-DADE COUNTY COURT REPORTERS, INC. (305) 373-5600

11

application had a number of variances that

were requested. All of those requests

have been withdrawn. This is a request

for straight up EU-M zoning. There are no

variances. There are no other special

requests. No special exception.

EU-M is one of your estate density

districts. It permits single-family

detached residential homes. It requires a

minimum net lot size of 15,000 square

feet. And the more -- all of the

regulations governing EU-M are included in

Tab 6 of your book, if you have any

questions about what those restrictions

are.

What does EU-M look like? Well, it

looks pretty much like almost every house

you see on this aerial photograph. All of

these houses to the west, everything you

see on here is zoned EU-M. All of these

houses to the south are zoned EU-M. A

straight EU-M zoning is what this

neighborhood has been working under for

many, many years. And that's what we are

requesting.
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All the way from 288 Street, all the

way up to the Urban Development Boundary,

right along the Urban Development

Boundary, that is all EU-M.

Now, in your books and in your

packets that you receive from staff, you

have the staff analysis. Planning &

Zoning has determined that the EU-M

request meets the comprehensive plan and

the requirements of the zoning code. Your

Public Works Department has reviewed the

application and found that there is

adequate capacity on the roadways to

permit the proposed development. Fire,

Solid Waste, DERM, Parks, they've all

reviewed the instant request and

determined that there's adequate

infrastructure.

Your schools, Miami-Dade County

Schools, has conducted its capacity

analysis and found that capacity exists

for these requests.

So, again, all the recommendations

are for approval.

Why are we here for EU-M? Over here,
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this is a copy of all of the zoning maps

for basically a full square mile centered

around the property. You can see the

subject property is identified there and

you can see the surrounding areas. That

is really hard to read at a distance.

CHAIRMAN BELL: Could you set that

back so the audience can see it.

MR. KRISCHER: Sure. Mike, do

you want to --

CHAIRMAN BELL: Go to the end, that

way they got a good view.

VICE CHAIRMAN LAWRENCE: Turn the

easel around. We can see it. Turn it.

CHAIRMAN BELL: Yeah, we're good.

There we go.

MR. KRISCHER: Now I'm not sure I can

see it.

CHAIRMAN BELL: That's better. Can

the audience see that better?

THE AUDIENCE: Yes.

MR. KRISCHER: That's the zoning maps

as they appeared.

Could you put that up? Because

that's what I'm going to be talking off
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of. The zoning map -- and we're going to

turn around that for a second.

VICE CHAIRMAN LAWRENCE: Turn that to

that side.

CHAIRMAN BELL: There you go, for the

audience, right there.

MR. KRISCHER: Now, that map is based

off -- that map is based off the notice

map that went out. You'll have a copy of

the uncolored map in your category.

That green oval is the boundaries of

the noticed area for this application.

That oval is a radius of half a mile. The

diameter of it is a full mile. So that

map is more than a square mile, again,

centered around our property.

And you'll notice that all of that

area in blue immediately abutting our

property, adjoining our property, is EU-M.

The EU-M runs the entire length of our

western boundary. It runs the entire

length of our southern boundary. Again,

it runs all the way to the UDB, all the

way up 162 Avenue.

This entire developed neighborhood
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has been developed with EU-M density, with

EU-M zoning. And the request before you

tonight is simply to allow the EU-M

district -- the EU-M zoning that is

compatible with that district to continue.

It's compatible with what's there, it's

harmonious and it's the appropriate zoning

district for this property.

How consistent is that pattern of

development? Again, every person I think

that's here tonight behind me is going to

speak in opposition to this application

and I expect that almost all of them

themselves live on an EU-M lot. Because

our objectors submitted a petition to the

County, and there's a copy of it in Tab 7

of your book, but I'm sure they will

distribute it as well, that has 188

signatures on it, 188 objectors, which is

a lot of objectors. We've really brought

the neighborhood together on this.

Of those 188 objectors, 185 of them

live on an EU-M lot, when we

crossed-checked the addresses.

So almost every single objector in
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that petition is asking this Board to deny

these applicants the same zoning that they

themselves have for their neighborhood and

on their own properties.

They will be coming up as soon as I

sit down and asking you to make a

determination that EU-M is inconsistent

with EU-M. That having developed, and

lived in a very lovely neighborhood that

is EU-M, that somehow it would be

detrimental, inharmonious or not supported

to have the same zoning right next to

them.

You probably have a lot of lawyers

come up and talk about the standard of

review for zoning application. I'm not

going to do that, but I am going to say

what you have been instructed in the past,

which is, this hearing is not about

figuring out what's popular. It's not

about figuring out what the neighbors

would want, or like or prefer. It's not

the purpose of conducting a poll of the

folks that live in the area. It is for

planning. It is for zoning.
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The purpose is to determine whether

the planning policies that this County and

this Board have adopted through the

comprehensive plan and the zoning code

warrant the request that's in front of

you.

And so even though once I sit down --

I'm going to sit down in 30 seconds -- I'm

going to be followed by a hopefully not

too long line of speakers expressing their

dismay with this request, I will

reiterate, the request is consistent with

the comprehensive plan. It is consistent

with the requirements of your zoning code.

The County has already made a

determination that this is an urban area,

that this is part of the area that is to

be part of the urban housing stock for

this County.

It is appropriate for single-family

development. And it is appropriate that

it be exactly what's adjoining it, EU-M.

Every reviewing department of your

professional staff has recommended

approval. And we would ask that you do it
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as well. And I look forward to speaking

to you in response to our neighbor's

objections.

Thank you.

CHAIRMAN BELL: Supporters of the

application, are there any other

supporters of the application?

MR. ALVAREZ: Right here.

CHAIRMAN BELL: Supporter?

MR. ALVAREZ: Yes.

Good evening. My name is Jorge

Alvarez. I reside at 27401 Southwest 164

Avenue. I.

Was also the developer of the

property that's to the south of this

property, which is 10 acres, back in '02.

I subdivided that property into 20 EU-M

lots.

I think this application is just and

coincides with the neighborhood. I

currently own five acres close by and

would like to develop that in the future.

Thank you.

CHAIRMAN BELL: Sorry. Could you put

that map up on the easel, kind of move
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back so the we can see it and the audience

can see it, so people can show where they

live, if they object to the application.

To the side. There we go.

Are you on the map.

MR. ALVAREZ: Sorry?

CHAIRMAN BELL: Are you on this?

MR. ALVAREZ: Yes, I'm on the map.

CHAIRMAN BELL: Where are you on

this, on the drawing?

MR. ALVAREZ: I own this five-acre

tract right here (indicating) and I live

right here (indicating).

MS. SCHWADERER-RAURELL: Sir, for the

record, can you just state, I mean, the

cross-streets of the 5-acre tract you

indicated.

MR. ALVAREZ: It's 278th Street and

approximately 157 Avenue, one lot in.

MS. SCHWADERER-RAURELL: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN BELL: Okay. Anymore

supporters of the application?

Okay, objectors.

Is everybody -- all the objectors

have been sworn in, right? Okay. All
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right.

Yes, sir.

MR. DE JESUS: Good evening, Panel,

my name is Victor De Jesus. I live at

27840 Southwest 160 Avenue.

CHAIRMAN BELL: On the map.

MR. DE JESUS: This is 160 Avenue.

I'm the third house or the middle house.

There's two houses. I'm right here,

approximately.

CHAIRMAN BELL: Okay.

MR. DE JESUS: And, basically, of

course, I agree with him, we all live in

EU-M. That's a no-brainer.

When I bought my house 10, 12 years

ago, I bought under -- not the assumption,

but there's plenty of land there. And

when my kids were a little smaller, we had

a good time there. The schools were

great.

I'm not saying we don't need it. I'm

saying we don't -- but we don't want it.

We don't need it.

And, for instance, Number 1, some of

our commissioners do not support police,
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Fire-Rescue as far as funding them. Now,

when you bring more 52 approximately homes

in this area, you're going to double the

amount of people there. More Fire-Rescue,

more police might be needed. They might

not. Nobody knows.

Dade County schools. I was in open

house the other night, my son's school has

50 to 53 kids per class. And I guess he

says the panel says that the School Board

approves of that. How many more kids are

going to move in this area?

We're going to have more cars, more

traffic. You know, our kids grow up in

that neighborhood. And I'm speaking for

myself and my kids, because, you know,

that also is supported -- you could go

back in the minutes of the County, Lynda

Bell actually even supported that being

agricultural. Now, Lynda Bell flip flops

on certain things, so now I'm sure she

won't support it now.

That's all agricultural. I mean,

what's it going to take? I mean, a lot of

people, I'm sure -- I don't mean any
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disrespect, are older, but our kids still

there. We're going to grow, but there's

more kids in the neighborhood. There's

parks.

I mean, I can sit here and talk to

you till you're blue in the face. I don't

have fancy words, but I've got a fancy

family and a fancy neighborhood to back us

up. Just understand where the neighbors

are coming from.

They tried it before. And, you know,

the sign said five-acre parcel lots for

sale. Now they're talking about 50 some

plus homes in that neighborhood.

And please, somebody, correct me if

I'm wrong, when we got with the attorneys,

their words were, they do not have to show

us no kind of plan. Well, very good,

thanks for helping us out there, Buddy.

Show us where the boundaries are.

Show us where your roads are going to be.

Show us when the new traffic comes through

there, doing 60, 70 miles an hour, because

we're going to be a cutoff zone and

they're trying to get home. I mean, let's
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think a little bit beyond just somebody

with deep pockets. We don't have deep

pockets. We got short hands with deep

pockets. I mean, we're trying to make an

honest living when we moved 10, 15 years

ago. And it's all agricultural.

For now, I mean, I have nothing else

to say. I'm not going to sit here and

talk to you till you're blue in the face.

I'm sure you're going to hear plenty more

other people, but that's my stand. And

I'm going to try to keep it short and

sweet.

But please understand where the

neighbors are coming from, as a mother, as

a father for our kids.

CHAIRMAN BELL: Okay.

MR. DE JESUS: I mean, don't think

about the big developers all the time.

Give us a little bit.

Thanks.

CHAIRMAN BELL: Okay. Next.

MR. BUCKHALT: My name is Johnathan

Buckhalt. I reside at 16 -- 16290

Southwest 274 Street.
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CHAIRMAN BELL: Where is --

MR. BUCKHALT: My house sits here.

I'm right here at the end of this street

here. Like you said, they're all EU-M. I

bought land on one acre. I didn't want to

be packed into a place like sardines.

And all the land from that side,

yeah, it can be zoned EU-M, up to that

line where it's all going to be

agricultural.

We know some day lots are going to be

built, everyone knows it's going to be

built some day, but we don't want to see

40 houses there with the cars, and traffic

and everything else that comes along with

that. Put -- I mean, I'd like to see

five-acre lots, but even something better

than 40 houses sitting right here.

We have five-acre parcels down this

side already. If you had a five-acre lot,

would you want six houses packed against

your property line? No, you build some

sort of progression to it.

There's many more things to say.

I'll let other people bring up the points
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I'm forgetting, but please think about the

little man.

CHAIRMAN BELL: Okay. Next.

MR. LAURIE: Good evening. William

Laurie, 27902 Southwest 159 Court. And I

oppose the changing of this parcel of land

from agricultural to EU-M.

The Miami-Dade definition of zoning

is that zoning controls the use, the

development of land for the health,

welfare, safety of the community. The

Redlands are synonymous with agriculture.

And to change this parcel from AU to EU-M

provides no gain to the established

community. It's, in fact, detrimental.

If this parcel is rezoned to

residential, this will link 40 new homes

directly to an existing neighborhood. The

impact has negative effects on all facets

of the community's well-being.

First and foremost is traffic. We

estimate that over 100 additional

vehicles, not including the traffic that

will be involved with the construction,

will have to transit our neighborhood to
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thoroughfares. Our streets are not

equipped with sidewalks.

This through traffic will endanger

our children, elderly walkers, longer

street runs, increase speed and decrease

safety. The traffic review should bear

out.

Environmental concerns. All the

homes in the area are on septic tanks.

Some homes use wells for potable water.

The aquifer water quality studies need to

be done on that. That's going to be an

impact.

Fire-Rescue services will be degraded

due to increased populated density.

Neighborhood watch, police services

will be stressed.

Parks and recreation facilities are

at capacity now. We have a nice park.

It's full. It's crowded.

An increase in school enrollees,

teacher/student ratios.

Public transit, solid waste services

will also be stretched.

I know apparently there's been a Comp
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Plan done, but let's look at the level of

services that will be reduced.

Concurrency information center will note

this loss of capacity.

Additional concerns are the developer

has been less than forthcoming with site

plans. The spec of tract homes next to

our established neighborhood is

distressing.

This parcel of land is presently

being farmed, is providing produce. The

surrounding area has been developed to a

manageable density.

To rezone, lose farmland, while

adversely affecting the community is

counter to the Miami-Dade definition of

zoning.

MR. WALTON: I'm Bruce Walton. I

live at 27801 Southwest 159 Court. I live

right next to the (inaudible). You have

it highlighted there. I'm the house

that's right on the field. And I've

watched the farmer work there for all

these years and he probably produces one

of the best crops I've ever seen. All the
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other farms around there cannot compare to

what he's producing out of that farm.

I concur with everything he said.

Thank you.

CHAIRMAN BELL: Yes, sir. Next.

MR. LECHOT: Good evening. My name

is Steve LeChot. I live at 16100 278

Street. That would be right across the

street, right there facing the field.

Is there any way I can refer to that

other chart?

MR. KRISCHER: Sure.

MR. LECHOT: That you have right

there.

MR. KRISCHER: It's the one right

behind it.

MR. LECHOT: When he was talking

about this one here, he was talking about

how close this was to the UDB -- or how

far away it was from the UDB. That's only

a thousand feet. He referred to the oval

around it as being a half-mile radius, but

he brought it down to 280 Street. The

radius goes down to 286 Street. So, as

you can see, over 50% of this boundary is
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agriculture. And we'd like to keep it

that way. That's all I've got.

CHAIRMAN BELL: Okay. Thank you.

Next.

MR. WHITNEY: My name is Joe Whitney.

I'm at 27825 Southwest 162 Avenue, the

second parcel to the south.

There are some other parcels that are

available for sale out in the Redlands

area. I work for Century 21. Our office

has at least two pieces that I know off

the top of my head that's available zoned

and ready to go. There's plenty of other

land out there that's available for these

developers instead of changing these

current AU-zoned Redland properties. So

if you can take that into consideration

when you decide on this. That's all I

got, but thank you.

CHAIRMAN BELL: Thanks.

Next.

MS. LECHOT: Good evening. My name

is Sandra LeChot. That was my better half

that spoke a minute ago. My address is

16100 Southwest 278 Street. And I live
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right here facing that field. I've lived

there for 31 years. And I bought that

house, because I love the area, because

Redland is agriculture and nurseries. And

I would like to see it kept that way.

I do have some more signatures on a

petition. Can I turn this in at this

time?

MR. HARRISON: Thank you.

MS. LECHOT: If you'll bear with me,

I've kind of written some notes here as to

what the attorney's had to say.

I printed out pretty much everything

on the web site having to do with all the

agencies that filed whatever they had to

file and what the staff recommended.

According to what I found, I don't

really see that the police department or

that the schools actually made a comment.

There was no comment. It was not an

approval. It was not an objection. It

was just a no comment. So he said that

all of these agencies approved everything.

And I disagree with that.

As far as the signatures on the
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petitions, yes, most of them are from

people that are in an EU-M zoning, but,

like he did say, there are some that are

not.

And we have signatures from all of

these people here that are on five-acre

lots and one-and-a-half or two-acre lots.

And some of them even wrote letters, okay,

which he didn't happen to mention, that we

filed at least 35 letters that I'm aware

of that oppose the zoning.

And one lady just bought the property

on 280 here (indicating). She bought five

acres. It's a beautiful place. She's

just added all of this landscaping. She's

got horses. It's gorgeous. And now here

she is -- she did write a letter. And

here she is not wanting all this traffic,

because she's got these horses. And it's,

like -- it's out in an area that we don't

need all of this traffic.

We did meet with the developer's

attorneys, like you asked us to, and

basically it was all for not, because they

came back to us. We told them our reasons
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and what we would like to see. And they

weren't willing to budge. All that they

were willing to do was to budge on the

size of the homes that they were going to

build. I didn't think that that was any

way of trying to work with the community.

And I thought that was the purpose of the

meeting, was to try to come to an

agreement.

I object for many reasons. One is

that there is no shortage of homes in the

area. And there are eight new homes that

are right here on 280 and Old Dixie, okay?

They're up for sale. Four of them are

built. Four of them are being built,

okay? The developer himself is building

homes within a mile of my house that's up

for sale. He's got ads in the paper every

Sunday for his homes. He's got two

developments that he's building, one on 67

Avenue and 296 Street, which is where he

had us meet, so that we could see the

houses that he's building.

But then he had us move to another

site, because they couldn't have -- they
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didn't have a key to where we were

supposed to meet. So we all had to move

to another site, which is this other

development, so that we could see that

home as well. Just to let you know.

Also, as Joe Whitney said, there are

resales in the area and there are

foreclosures going on. And I know this,

because I walked around and got these

signatures on the petitions. So I know I

saw homes for sale. There's plenty of

homes for sale there.

And as my husband stated, this site

here is only a thousand feet from the UDB

line. It doesn't mean that it has to be

developed. And as you can see, there's

agriculture on two sides. And there's

EU-M on two sides. So, to me, it's pretty

equal. And it doesn't need to be

developed.

As far as the water shortage, I feel

that when you put up to 50 homes, which is

what I believe they're wanting to do, if

you put 50 homes there, you're going to

have what we -- we have water restrictions
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already in Miami-Dade County. You're

going to have 52 homes that are going to

need drinking water. You're going to have

52 homes that are going to need water for

landscaping. This agriculture site needs

well water. That's to say it comes from

the same place, but you get much less use

of water through the well water being used

on this agriculture site as opposed to 50

homes.

And traffic, well, we already know

what that's going to do. And, like I

said, I moved to this area 31 years ago.

And I moved there. I had a choice between

two homes, the home in Redland and a home

in West Kendall. And I moved here,

because I love the agriculture. I love

the nurseries. I love being out in a

rural area. And I wanted to be away from

traffic. I don't have far to go to do my

shopping. It's a perfect setup, perfect

neighborhood. And I would like to see it

kept that way.

Agriculture is very, very important

to the area. As a matter of fact, the
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country uses agriculture from the Redland

during the winter months throughout the

country. So I would like to see it remain

agriculture, and landscape and nurseries.

And I think that I would really

appreciate it if you guys would support us

in any way that you can and help us keep

Redland green.

Thank you.

COUNCILWOMAN COATS-DAVIS: What's

your name again?

MS. LECHOT: Sandra LeChot.

MS. OSBORNE: Hello, my name is

Melinda Osborne and I live at 27850

Southwest 159 Avenue. I'm the third house

in here, so we're right down the street.

It's a dead-end street to go to the field.

And, first, I want to say that Bill

Laurie, everything he said, I support

100%.

The lady that was mentioned that

has horses --

CHAIRMAN BELL: You've got to be

sworn. You came in late.

MS. OSBORNE: I didn't come in late.
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I was sworn in. I was here early.

CHAIRMAN BELL: Okay. No problem.

MS. OSBORNE: There was a mention of

the lady who bought the five acres of the

horse. She's on my street, right here at

the end, the point of 280 and 159 Avenue.

My daughter and I work with her and the

horses.

The extra traffic in the neighborhood

would absolutely be detrimental to -- you

know, none conducive with what we're doing

with the horses there. The horses are

used for a very important purpose. They

are used for equine therapy at the Agape

Center. Barb Morello is the owner of that

property. And she couldn't be here

tonight, but wanted me to speak her

concerns. You know, it's going to totally

derail her purpose of buying the property

and having those horses. There's no way

with the extra traffic, we're going to be

able to walk, you know, train them the way

we've been doing.

I've been in my property over

10-and-a-half years. I have a 13-year-old
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daughter, who I raised in the

neighborhood. I am not at all open to the

extra traffic going through the

neighborhood. There's already too much.

The schools and the parks, as were already

mentioned, are already overcapacity.

And just -- and the agricultural

aspect of it, absolutely that was part of

the reason, you know, I wanted to be near

there, the fields there. We, you know,

get to enjoy the change of the properties,

the importance of that to the community

and the whole United States, like they

said, during the winter months.

And just, you know, we appreciate

your consideration in any way you can to

keep this property as it is agricultural,

nursery and keep our neighborhood the way

it is. Thank you.

MS. HINDIN: Hi. I'm Lindsey Hindin.

I live at 27905 Southwest 162 Avenue. I

live right next to Joe Whitney, 162, and

I'm the third house in from the field.

Just to sort of sum up some of the

concerns. We previously addressed this
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issue on this exact same property back in

2007 and '08, and we were very successful.

And this situation was dismissed.

The traffic pattern -- one of the

problems with traffic pattern is this

particular piece of land, as you can see,

is surrounded by avocado groves. That

means that the traffic is going to be very

limited to these areas, which is going to

increase density and traffic, because

there's very limited access to that

particular 20-acre piece.

In 2008, when we went door to door

and we petitioned every home, we found out

that in our area there's 2.7 vehicles per

home and 2.2 children per home. So that

traffic pattern is going to be very much

of a problem when you have those avocado

groves on either side and you have Mr.

Ingram's nursery on the other side.

Secondly, I am the director of the

emergency department of South Miami

Hospital. And I'm very familiar with

Homestead Hospital being extremely

overwhelmed with increasing wait times in
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their emergency departments, decreasing

patient satisfaction. And they are now

transferring patients from Homestead

Hospital to Baptist and to South Miami.

They cannot continue to have

overwhelming development in this area in

spite of the comprehensive plan.

I have also spoken to Fire-Rescue in

Miami-Dade County. They have reduced the

number of people that are working there.

They have laid them off. And that has

resulted in increasing response times.

And I can tell you this was the case back

in 2007, and they acknowledge that.

Furthermore, there are, as Joe

Whitney says, multiple other developments

taking place in Homestead, many by Mr.

Rosen, and including Keys Gate Golf Club,

which has just been purchased. And it

will not be a golf club anymore; it will

be a housing development. How much more

do we need in the comprehensive plan?

Schools are overwhelmed. The ratios

are increasing, and the schools in -- C

and D schools. This is not a great thing.
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I'm very glad that I chose not to have

children.

The other reality is that this

property -- it's true, this property is

less than two blocks from the UDB line.

As has been stated, why not have a

progression from EU-M through to UDB.

That would be a natural progression and it

would work for the community. It would

work for the agricultural. And it would

work for the people, who have those

five-acre lots right here. Forty new

houses is going to be a huge density.

And we don't know it's 40, because,

as has already been stated in the meeting

where we met, as you had requested, with

the lawyers, they said they did not have

to provide any kind of plan for us. That

was it.

The bottom line was they were looking

at rezoning. So we don't know. The

original plan was 52 homes, which they

withdrew. Now it's 40, 42. We have no

idea. And did they sort of fool us

around. You know, the meeting was
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supposed to be here. Then they moved it

to here. This is a very accomplished law

firm. I know, they do business for the

hospital I work for. They are not paid to

make errors and they're not paid to forget

a key.

Septic tanks and wells. I'm on a

septic tank and I'm on a well. Having 42,

52 more homes is a problem. The Redlands

is agricultural.

And, finally, I think at the last

election, us, as taxpayers and voters, we

clearly stated that we did not want this

piece of land. Clearly stated that we did

not want this piece of land developed.

Lynda Bell is no longer as effective I

believe November 16th, the commissioner.

She was outvoted.

We are tired of having our

neighborhood, which is EU-M -- and it was

very presumptuous of you, by the way, to

make the comment that we were going to

state that EU-M is inconsistent with EU-M.

We've never stated that. We are simply

stating that we feel that EU-M is at its
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maximum capacity. This is the UDB line

with five-acre lots. And we would like a

reasonable progression. This piece of

land does not need to be developed at this

time.

We would very much appreciate your

consideration. And if you have any

questions, we'd be happy to answer them.

Thank you.

CHAIRMAN BELL: Okay. Thank you.

MS. SCHWADERER-RAURELL: Mr. Bell,

Mr. Chair, if I could make a quick

announcement.

Staff has passed around copies of

petitions and letters that were received

on this application. Some of them say

duplicate. And that just means that the

letter is maybe by the same person who

also signed the petition, just for

purposes of staff counts of how many

objectors they received, but it doesn't

mean that there's two copies of the letter

in the packet. Just to clarify.

COUNCILWOMAN COATS-DAVIS: Is this

the petition the same that's in the book,
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same application?

MR. KRISCHER: That is the copy of

the petition that we received from staff.

It would not include any additional names

that were submitted tonight.

COUNCILWOMAN NAVARRO: Mr. Chairman,

so do we have a total of --

MR. HARRISON: Through the Chair.

COUNCILWOMAN NAVARRO: -- the

petitioners -- the objectors?

MR. HARRISON: For the record, what

staff read into the record, apart from

what was received recently, which we have

not had a chance to match with what was

received, we had 197 people that were

opposed.

CHAIRMAN BELL: Do we have any

objectors?

MR. JONCKHEERE: I was not sworn in.

(Thereupon, Mr. Benoit Jonckheere was

duly sworn).

MR. JONCKHEERE: My name is Benoit

Jonckheere. I live on 16208 Southwest 274

Street. Property over here (indicating).

It's a two-acre property. John has one.
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Another neighbor has one also.

We moved there, because we love the

neighborhood. We love the green. So,

east, I have all the avocado grove.

I totally acknowledge and agree with

everything, which have been said before.

One thing I want to add, it's -- I'm

sorry, I don't know the street. I think

it's 270 probably 5 or 276 Street. Let me

show you. (Indicating). It was an

eight-acre avocado. Was sold maybe six,

seven years ago by a developer to build 16

houses. Only three have been built right

now. Only three. So I don't know if

because the market is strong, but I don't

think there's a demand probably for houses

in this neighborhood. Let's keep it

green.

Thank you.

CHAIRMAN BELL: Anymore? Is there

anymore objectors?

Seeing none, we'll go to the

rebuttal.

MR. KRISCHER: All right. Mr.

Chairman, thank you very much.
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I was right that most of the people

here were in objection to this. And I

think that we can stipulate that no matter

how many people have sent in letters, that

there's considerable amount of opposition

to this development.

However, many of the things, indeed

all of the things that you've heard

tonight, are not a sufficient basis for

denying this application. And I'll go

through why.

It's mentioned, and I apologize that

I tried to keep track as well as I could

of who raised the objections, but I'll

just group them by subject.

So the objection concerning to

schools. And I've been doing this for a

while. And, you know, back in 2000, the

mid 2000's, early 2000's, that was the

complaint that I'm sure you, as Board

members, and members of the community,

heard the most, the schools are

overcrowded, the schools are overcrowded.

And you, the County, Miami-Dade

County School Board, did something about
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that. You made it better. In the

application that you have -- I mean, for

some reason, the staff report for this

particular application in 2007, isn't

available online, but if you look in Tab

10, you approved, this Board approved, any

EU-M application up near the UDB, back in

the day, in 2006. And it has the school

report. And the schools were horribly

overcrowded: 160%, 120% overcrowded.

School analysis for this application,

which is the last tab in this book, all of

the schools that service this property are

under capacity today, which seems amazing,

but what's happened in the last 10 years

is that the School Board has constructed

numerous improvements. All of the things

that were identified as future capacity

improvements in 2006 have been completed.

And so you have new K through 8

schools that have been opened, expansions

to South Dade Senior. And you have had so

many charter schools open in this area,

that at the council meeting last month of

the city of Homestead, the city of
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Homestead council directed their staff to

start exploring a moratorium, because

there were too many schools that have been

built in the city of Homestead, in this

area. There are literally hundreds of

student stations, elementary, middle and

high school, that are available to service

this.

Not only has the capacity been

increased, but because of the pressure of

good folks, like the people that are here

tonight, constantly complaining about that

with reason, Miami-Dade County and

Miami-Dade County Public Schools finally

implemented school concurrency. You

cannot build unless the School Board

determines that there's adequate capacity.

Not just tonight. Whatever this

Board does tonight, if you approve this

application, when we come in for plat,

they're going to check again to make sure

that whatever is specifically requested,

that there is adequate capacity in the

schools. And if there isn't, we can't get

a plat.
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And so, yes, there is still a lot of

residual fear and a perception out there

that things are going to be terrible if

you approve more homes, but things have

improved markedly in that respect.

As to traffic, we're talking about

extending local roads by a block. You'll

notice that all of this area over here,

you've got local roads that extend

two blocks, four blocks. People don't go

70 miles an hour down those roads. If

they do -- if they do, then that is a

condition that exists everywhere in the

County.

These roads are all constructed

according to the Public Works manual for

local roads. In many cases, in areas much

denser than EU-M; RU-1, RU-1MA, RU-1MB.

So if neighbors are telling you that the

basic standard for a local road in Dade

County cannot handle more than one block,

a local road cannot be more than one block

or it's unsafe for their kids, unsafe for

their elderly, that is simply absurd.

I don't mean to disparage their
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experience of their neighborhood, but the

standard for evaluating these zoning

requests has to be grounded in evidence

and in fact.

The Public Works Department has

reviewed this. A local road that is two

blocks in length is not inherently unsafe.

Moreover, they've reviewed the

overall infrastructure for the area.

Southwest 268 Street has more than enough

capacity to accommodate these homes.

It is above level of service. It's

actually level of service C. Not level of

service E. Not level of service D.

The addition of another 20 acres of

EU-M, when you've got literally five or

600 homes, just in that portion of that

aerial and it extends beyond, is not going

to render that road any different that

they'll notice in terms of traffic,

because your Public Works Department has

analyzed the impact. And determined that

for all the traffic counts, there will be

no degradation of level of service.

With respect to wells, I mean,
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generally, as a general matter,

agricultural uses more water than

residential uses. It's a very

water-intensive use.

But all of these homes in this

area -- and, again, I keep coming back to

the fact -- that this is blocks, and

blocks and blocks of EU-M that all

function very nicely.

This block, if this Board approves

it, this group of homes, is going to be

functionally indistinguishable from the

rest of this neighborhood. And I'll get

to the cumulative nature in a moment.

But in terms of calling them tract

houses, thinking that the wells won't

operate, thinking that it's going to cause

an environmental problem for these

residents, these homes have been here for

decades, in the same level of density,

without any of those ill effects.

With respect to Homestead Hospital,

it was something that had been brought up

earlier. We actually, as Ms. Hindin

mentioned, we represent Baptist Hospital.
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We spoke to them about that. Baptist

Hospital does have a tremendous number of

people that are using the emergency room,

the emergency services at Homestead

Hospital. The problem that they're having

is that there's a lot of people that are

showing up there not for emergency care,

but for primary care. Very large numbers

of indigent folks, some with, some without

insurance, are showing up, not for

emergency treatment, but for primary care.

And those individuals get triaged, and

they do not receive emergency room care,

obviously, and they will have to wait,

because they're not an emergency.

The folks that are buying detached

estate density homes with 2.7 cars are not

going to be showing up at Baptist Hospital

emergency room instead of going to their

primary doctor.

There is no indication that Baptist

Hospital cannot provide adequate emergency

care for the people that are turning up

there in need of it.

With respect to parks, your Parks
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Department has reviewed this, determined

there's surplus of park land in the area.

With respect to the fire, the Fire

Department has reviewed this and

determined that there is an adequate

response time.

There are budget constraints on all

County departments. That has been the

case for unfortunately far too long.

If that were an adequate basis for

not increasing density by 40, 50 homes,

you would shut down development in

Miami-Dade County. And I don't want to

talk about case law too much, although I

did include some cases in the book, but it

is simply not legally sufficient to point

to these types of generalized impacts that

would completely preclude all development

as a basis for denying a rezoning.

Almost every request for development

approval increases traffic, for example.

That's not the issue. The issue is, can

the infrastructure accommodate the

increase in traffic. Otherwise, this

Board and all government boards would have
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unfettered discretion to deny everything

that came in front of them. And the

courts have said that is not what the rule

is.

With respect to the lack of a site

plan, when we had originally come forward

with this application, we had submitted a

site plan because we were seeking

variances. We were seeking to deviate

from the minimum standards of EU-M.

We withdrew that application for two

reasons.

One, because we were receiving

pushback from the County with respect to

the increase in density that comes from

those variances, because they would have

allowed for slightly smaller lots. And we

were told that that was not something that

we were looking at.

The second thing that we were told,

is that the Public Works Department had

concerns about not having these roads pass

through, because the Public Works

Department has determined that that type

of road interconnectivity is critical to
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the smooth function of the transportation

network down here.

We will be working with your

professional staff and we will be working

with your Public Works Department when we

come in for platting. Just like all of

the homes in this area were zoned EU-M

and the final site plan was determined at

the time that the plat came forward in

connection with Public Works Department

and meeting all of the requirements for

staff.

Buffers and transitional elements are

a marvelous tool of planning. They work

really well.

I have five-acre estates, which I

don't think is really a credible option.

There's homes all the way up here.

There's literally hundreds of homes. Each

of these blocks is 32 lots. 150 homes

that are closer to the UDB than we are.

They're all EU-M.

These homes up here are five-acre

estates immediately adjoining the UDB.

We're not immediately adjoining the UDB.
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What we are immediately adjoining is

five homes over here, eight homes over

here. All of them are EU-M. All of them

are 15 to 17,000-square-foot lots.

What this property would be

appropriate for, will be compatible for,

is to match what borders us. Not what is

several blocks away. And not to keep it

as agriculture.

Yes, the Redlands is renown for its

agriculture. This property is inside the

Urban Development Boundary. This property

is not supposed to remain in the

agricultural inventory for the long term.

It is an urban property.

The best way to protect the

properties outside the UDB is to not waste

the developable land inside the UDB.

Whenever you increase the size of your

lot, you burn up more developable land for

each unit.

Talk about need, if you approve this

application tonight, it would be a year

before we got our plat approved. That's

about what it takes to get a plat approved
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in Dade County. It would be another, you

know, 5 or 6 months before we got a

building permit done. However long

construction would take from that point,

sales, marketing.

Developers are not looking at what

the market is today. They're looking at

what the market is typically two years

from when I'm standing in front of you.

And so while we recognize that our

neighbors can look and see what homes are

for sale, in terms of substantial

competent evidence, using that term,

looking forward into the market is a skill

that developers use. And they don't

always do it well, but they're not

planning for the present day.

I think I've hit on most of the

points. I'm available to answer any

questions.

But to summarize all of this, we

totally understand that our neighbors

would rather things stay the way they are.

I don't think that there's any question

tonight that they don't want this to
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happen. And if that was the rule, then

this would be a very easy decision for

you.

However, there's a reason why you

have a thick packet from your Planning and

Zoning Department instead of just how many

people are for and against. It's because

this process is supposed to be guided by

what makes sense, what does the

infrastructure support, what does your

comprehensive plan say, how do you plan

for the orderly development of this

County. Not just what other people would

like to see in the adjoining yards.

We believe that we have fully

satisfied all of the criteria of the code,

that your staff has done an excellent job

of reviewing the impacts and that this

application should be approved.

Thank you very much. And I can

answer any specific questions that you

have.

CHAIRMAN BELL: Okay, Board Members.

COUNCILWOMAN COATS-DAVIS: Excuse me.

VICE CHAIRMAN LAWRENCE: You know --
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we -- I'm sorry.

COUNCILWOMAN COATS-DAVIS: I'm sorry.

VICE CHAIRMAN LAWRENCE: Ladies

first.

COUNCILWOMAN COATS-DAVIS: I'm sorry

about my voice. I'm not well tonight, but

I'm here listening.

And let me commend the attorney for

an elegant and factual presentation, but I

am one that don't change stripes.

I am a native born Miamian. I know

what's in the Redlands. I know what was

on Krome. I know what was in Richmond

Heights. Pretty much what's going on as

far as the land is concerned.

And I'm in a neighborhood that had

development. And after development came,

then citizens started complaining about

traffic and everything else.

Well, my response to them was, "Why

didn't you come to the meetings? Why

weren't you there when decisions were

deemed? Plans were being made to make

those decisions?"

The traffic in the community is just
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terrible. I've watched groves turning to

estates where the communities are crowded.

I don't know if I'm speaking for the

citizens out there, but, to me, it's not

as much we don't want, as we don't want to

be crowded, a crowded community, where

people are moving out where they can have

space, and have land for their children to

play and enjoy some kind of peace,

atmosphere, not like the north end of

Miami-Dade, which is pretty congested.

So as a native Miamian, and you may

call me old fashion, but that's my

opinion, I think the community should have

what they want and we start listening to

the community for what they want.

Thank you.

(Applause).

VICE CHAIRMAN LAWRENCE: Mr.

Chairman, over the years we've seen this

happen time and time again. You have

property that is zoned ag. And the owners

farm it. And when farming becomes less

viable, or they get tired of it and they

want to liquidate, the first thing that is
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done is you seek to upgrade the zoning on

the property to increase its value and it

becomes more profitable to the owner then.

And I think the owners actually owe

the residents a little something. After

all, you've gotten an agricultural

exemption on the property all of these

years.

And I think a compromise would have

gone a long ways here as far as maybe

asking for one-acre parcels instead of

what you're looking at here.

And we've tried over the years to

create -- when you get that close to the

Urban Development Boundary line, to create

some type of buffer where we do entertain,

you know, one-acre lots as opposed to

these 15,000, 16, 17,000-square-foot lots.

So with the availability of other

parcels in the area and the glut of

houses, whether they're foreclosures or

new homes on the market, I really believe

that this application is a little bit

premature at this time.

And to give you what you want this
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evening would actually change the whole

character of that neighborhood.

I've been out there many times. And

I know it's -- you can look at it as being

a little selfish on the residents' part,

because, you know, they want to see this

field. They want to see this farmland. I

mean, even though they are living on the

same thing, they want to see it.

If you go out there, and you take a

look at what they're talking about, they

have a valid point. You know, when they

moved there, this was there. And, you

know, like I said, I know it's a little

selfish to expect it to be there forever.

And eventually it will be developed, but I

just think this is a little premature at

this time and I can't support it.

(Applause).

CHAIRMAN BELL: We can't have the

clapping. That's out of order, please,

okay?

Lubby.

COUNCILWOMAN NAVARRO: Thank you, Mr.

Attorney and residents for coming.
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I am a strong believer that we do --

we should have long time ago created a

buffer, basically the UDB and development.

And I was not on the board when those, I

think, five homes were referenced to or

approved right along the UDB. And that is

something that I will never support that

close to the UDB.

I think it is a buffer in an area

that is, to me, our most pristine area in

the County. And I do understand your

pride living in that area. I think these

are the areas in our County that we have

to continue to protect.

Like my colleague said, eventually,

because of our Master Plan, these are

areas that are going to be developed, so I

think it's something that you, living

there, will have to know, that,

eventually, whether this passes here or

not today, the attorneys and developers

and the owner representatives will come

here again to ask us or another board to

approve it.

Again, this area, to me, is an area
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that has a large agriculture area.

Although you are living in a different

density, we have to protect -- and this is

just my philosophical view of maybe land

use, in these areas along the UDB, I do

see it, it is very -- it borders the UDB

very close.

And my other concern is that,

obviously, like the attorney said, we

don't know until he goes through plat, and

through that process what the through

streets would look like, but I do believe

that looking at the property that it will

create traffic and the traffic will

probably end up in those homes right

across.

So the dumping -- on the people

speeding to get to the top of the border

of the property will occur. And then --

'cause you're not going to be able to

create streets in the other area, which is

ag. And that, to me -- I understand the

residents' concerns in that.

So, at this time, I have to say that

this is something that I cannot support.
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I have to say that we have to continue to

preserve this area.

CHAIRMAN BELL: Mr. Dufek.

COUNCILMAN DUFEK: I've lived on the

Redlands most of my life. And I've been

involved in zoning most of my life.

One thing that I've seen is the fact

that every time the County or developers

come in and move the UDB line, the first

thing that the people in the affected area

will say, and I've heard it time and time

again at hearings, is there's already so

much land inside the UDB, develop that

first.

Well, this, from what I can see, has

been -- and I don't know when it was put

in the UDB, and I'm quite sure that staff

probably doesn't know when it was put

inside the UDB, but I do know that the

homes on the south side were built in the

mid 60's and the homes on the west side

were built in the mid 70's.

And so I would venture a guess that

it's probably been 50 years that this

property has been inside the UDB. And
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people have been using the argument that,

hey, we've already got all this land in

the UDB; develop that before you move the

line.

Now, if we come here and say, no,

we're not going to let you develop this,

then we're defeating the purpose of having

a zoning and a UDB line altogether.

Because, like I said, this is inside

the UDB, whether it was developed 50 years

ago, when it was moved in or whether it

just is going to sit there and we're going

to keep moving the UDB line, because we

can't develop what's inside there. Then

what we're doing, and I've seen it also,

is the fact that you're doing leap frog

development and that cost you more for

public services. It cost you more for

police to go through empty areas, blank

areas, like you see in West Kendall and

stuff like that. There will be massive

tracks of agricultural line and then

another development. Well, it cost money

to be leap frogging. Not only the Fire

Department, but the police department and
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all the public services over those long

distances.

And that's the reason why, to my

idea, the orderly development of the stuff

inside the UDB line should happen before

the UDB is moved again. And if you don't

allow this to happen, I'm afraid that

you're basically pushing the can down the

road saying, well, yeah, we're going to

need more UDB land, which means we're

going to lose more agricultural land.

And this land, although it's been

farmed for, like I say, probably over

50 years that it's been inside the UDB,

it's still -- the fact remains that it is

inside the UDB. And, like I said, the

fact that the homes south of that were

built in the 60's and the ones west of it

were built in the 70's, that tells you

that it's been a long time that it's been

inside the UDB. And that should be

developed before we go any farther.

And so I hate to say it, because I

got a lot of friends out there, but I

think that this development is
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appropriate. It's not out of line.

I'd like to ask just a couple of

questions.

Number 1, how many units are you

planning to build on this? Because

comparable properties to the south shows

that there shouldn't be more than, what,

about 40 units in this 20-acre property.

MR. KRISCHER: Through the Chair, and

to respond to your first point first, it's

always been inside the UDB. It was inside

the first iteration of the UDB.

COUNCILMAN DUFEK: That's what I was

thinking, that it was probably part of the

original UDB line that was drawn back in

the 50's when Dade County was first

organized. That's how old it is.

MR. KRISCHER: It was in the GLUMP,

the Generalized Urban Master Plan,

whatever it stands for.

The total number of units will be

determined by -- with EU-M, it's a net

density. And so it's a matter of where

the roads are, where the functions are.

It's always going to be less than the
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maximum.

All of your staff reports analyze at

52, because that's the theoretical

maximum. If we didn't have any roads, if

we didn't have any need to -- if we could

just put them all together and have people

walk to their houses, you could fit 52 on

here.

You're absolutely right, the four

blocks immediately south of us are also

the same size, it's 20 acres, and there's

40 homes on that. That's probably what

we're looking at. To be candid with the

Board, it might be 1 or 2 more units

that's going to be driven by -- the

derisive laughter may not show on the

transcript, but you should base your

decision on the fact that even at 52.

There is no indication that this is not an

appropriate development that's supported

by infrastructure.

COUNCILMAN DUFEK: The other question

I have is, some of the people brought up

the subject, and I was curious as to

whether you would be allowed in this
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development to do the same thing or

whether you would have to bring in Water

and Sewer lines.

Will this be developed -- if this is

developed, will this be developed with

well on septic tanks or will it have to be

on Water and Sewer?

MR. KRISCHER: It would not have to

be on Water and Sewer. If you look in Tab

2 of the book that we handed out, that's

the DERM recommendation. We will have to

bring in water, but we will not have to

bring sewer.

COUNCILMAN DUFEK: Oh, you just have

to bring in the water?

MR. KRISCHER: Yes.

CHAIRMAN BELL: What is that, well

water?

MR. KRISCHER: We will have to --

DERM has said we will have to connect to

potable water, public water.

COUNCILMAN DUFEK: Public water,

septic tank.

Okay, that's all I have.

CHAIRMAN BELL: Mr. Davis.
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COUNCILMAN DAVIS: I agree with him,

so --

THE AUDIENCE: Can't hear you.

COUNCILMAN DAVIS: -- I don't need to

restate it.

MR. HARRISON: Through the Chair, if

I might just make one slight correction

for staff's sake.

Our recommendation shows that you,

may get up to 50 units, not 52, so just

for clarification.

CHAIRMAN BELL: Okay.

COUNCILMAN DUFEK: I'll make a motion

to approve the application as per the

Department's recommendation.

COUNCILMAN DAVIS: I'll second.

COUNCILMAN DUFEK: All terms and

conditions of the County.

CHAIRMAN BELL: We have a motion to

approve.

COUNCILMAN DAVIS: And I second.

CHAIRMAN BELL: We have a second.

We'll call for the question.

MR. HARRISON: There's a motion on

the floor to approve the application per



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

MIAMI-DADE COUNTY COURT REPORTERS, INC. (305) 373-5600

71

staff's recommendation.

Motion was moved by Councilman Dufek

and seconded by Councilman Davis.

Councilman Dufek?

COUNCILMAN DUFEK: Yes.

MR. HARRISON: Councilman Davis?

COUNCILMAN DAVIS: Yes.

MR. HARRISON: Vice Chair Lawrence?

VICE CHAIR LAWRENCE: No.

MR. HARRISON: Councilwoman

Coats-Davis?

COUNCILWOMAN COATS-DAVIS: No.

MR. HARRISON: Councilwoman Navarro?

COUNCILMAN NAVARRO: No.

MR. HARRISON: And Chairman Bell?

CHAIRMAN BELL: Yes.

MR. HARRISON: It's a tie vote.

MR. KRISCHER: If I may, through the

Chair, there has been considerable

distress by the community voiced to you

about being called out here time and time

again, and we have contractual issues with

the application.

Given that there are insufficient

votes for the approval, we would request
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the contrary motion. And if it pleases

the Board, to formally take action on

this, recognizing that we're not going to

get approval.

I'm quite confident that our

neighbors do not want to come out again

next month, which I'm looking to the

County attorney, will be the result of a

tie vote. We appreciate the members that

have voted in support of this application,

but a tie vote, I don't think anybody here

would object to resolving this issue

tonight. If it cannot be resolved with an

approval, we would welcome the opportunity

for a final resolution with a contrary

motion.

MS. SCHWADERER-RAURELL: If there is

a tie vote, another motion could be in

order. If no other motion is passed, if

it's a tie vote, the application would

automatically be deferred to your next

meeting.

VICE CHAIRMAN LAWRENCE: We can't

change the actual request, correct?

CHAIRMAN BELL: Modify.
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MS. SCHWADERER-RAURELL: Well, what

exactly -- Mr. Lawrence, what exactly do

you mean? I mean --

VICE CHAIRMAN LAWRENCE: If he were

to change his request to one-acre home

sites, then I would change my vote.

CHAIRMAN BELL: Even three quarter.

MR. KRISCHER: If I may, I appreciate

the suggestion, Board Member Lawrence.

The applicants in this matter are the

owners of the property. There are

financial terms of the transaction, as

were noted before. I cannot stand here

and say that the deal still works at a

lower density.

And although it may seem as though

any density is better than ag, if they are

going to be forced to continue to farm

this for another, what, it was seven years

since the last application when everybody

was here and told, you know, next year in

Jerusalem, dayenu; this will be in the

future. Well, if they have to farm it

another seven years, they need to have

their ag.
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So I do appreciate it. I do not mean

to be in any way difficult, but I do not

believe that is a resolution for the

applicant.

CHAIRMAN BELL: Okay. Board Members,

what's it going to be?

VICE CHAIRMAN LAWRENCE: That's it.

MR. KRISCHER: A motion for denial I

think would be the contrary motion.

VICE CHAIRMAN LAWRENCE: I'd like to

offer a motion that this application be

denied.

COUNCILWOMAN COATS-DAVIS: Second.

CHAIRMAN BELL: Call for the

question.

MR. HARRISON: There's a motion on

the floor. There's a new motion on the

floor to deny the application. The motion

was moved by Councilman Lawrence and it

was seconded by Councilwoman Coats-Davis.

Vice Chair Lawrence?

VICE-CHAIR LAWRENCE: Yes.

MR. HARRISON: Councilman

Coats-Davis?

COUNCILMAN COATS-DAVIS: Yes.



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

MIAMI-DADE COUNTY COURT REPORTERS, INC. (305) 373-5600

75

MR. HARRISON: Councilwoman Navarro?

COUNCILWOMAN NAVARRO: Yes.

MR. HARRISON: Councilman Dufek?

COUNCILMAN DUFEK: No.

MR. HARRISON: Councilman Davis?

COUNCILMAN DAVIS: Yes. Go ahead,

yes.

MR. HARRISON: And Chairman Bell?

CHAIRMAN BELL: No.

Your motion carries.

MR. HARRISON: Motion carries 4 to 2,

motion to deny with -- is that denied

without prejudice?

VICE CHAIRMAN LAWRENCE: That's

correct.

CHAIRMAN BELL: Right.

VICE CHAIRMAN LAWRENCE: Yeah.

COUNCILWOMAN COATS-DAVIS: Right.

CHAIRMAN BELL: Denied without

prejudice.

MR. KRISCHER: Thank you very much.

We will not see you next month.

CHAIRMAN BELL: The public hearing is

closed. You did a good job.

MR. KRISCHER: Thank you very much.
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CHAIRMAN BELL: Excellent. You're

the best.

(Thereupon, at 7:37 p.m., the meeting

was adjourned).
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CERTIFICATE OF OATH

STATE OF FLORIDA)

COUNTY OF DADE )

I, Lorena Ramos, Notary Public, State

of Florida, certify that all witnesses

personally appeared before me on 10/01/2014,

and were duly sworn.

____________________________

LORENA RAMOS, NOTARY PUBLIC

STATE OF FLORIDA

Commission #FF119086 MAY 4, 2018

           Lorena Ramos
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CERTIFICATE OF REPORTER

I, Lorena Ramos, Registered Professional

Reporter and Florida Professional Reporter, do

hereby certify that I was authorized to and did

report the foregoing proceeding, the hearing on

Helen Michael and Preferred Enterprises, Inc.,

No. 14-003, heard by Board 14; and that the

transcript, pages 1 through 76, is a true and

correct record of my stenographic notes.

DATED this 5th day of November 2014,

at Miami-Dade County, Florida.

_____________________________

LORENA RAMOS, RPR & FPR

COURT REPORTER

           Lorena Ramos

           Lorena Ramos


